ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 4, 2013
8:01 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Lynn Gattis, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Represent ati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Harriet Drunmond

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 27

"An Act relating to student counts, unreserved school operating
fund bal ances, restrictions on school district noney, and
estimates for public school funding; and providing for an
effective date."

- HEARD & HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 27

SHORT TITLE: STUDENT COUNT ESTI MATES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FEI GE, COSTELLO, GATTIS

01/ 16/ 13 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 7/ 13

01/ 16/ 13 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 13 (H) EDC, FIN

02/ 04/ 13 (H EDC AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE ERI C FEI CE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: As the bill sponsor, introduced HB 27.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2013



M CHAEL PASCHALL, Staff

Representative Eric Feige

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 27 on behalf of the sponsor,
Represent ati ve Fei ge.

LUKE FULP, Chief Business Oficial

Busi ness & QOperations

Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District

Pal mer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during presentation of
HB 27.

PETE LEW S, Superi nt endent

Fai rbanks North Star Borough School District

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 27.

LARRY DEVI LBI SS, Myor

Mat anuska- Susi t na Bor ough

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 27.

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director

School Finance and Facilities Section

Depart ment of Education and Early Devel opnent (EED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
27.

PEGGY COMN, Superintendent

Nort h Sl ope Borough School District

Barrow, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during discussion of HB 27.

DUNCAN WARE, Superi nt endent

Delta/ Greely School District

Del ta Junction, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 27.

CARL ROSE, Executive Director

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards (AASB)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 27.

Bl LL MCLEOD, Superi ntendent

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -2- February 4, 2013



Dillingham City School District
Di|'lingham Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 27.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:01:55 AM

CHAI R LYNN GATTIS called the House Education Standing Conmmttee
nmeeting to order at 8:01 a.m Representatives Gattis, Reinbold,
P. WIlson, Drunmond, Seaton, Saddler, and LeDoux were present at
the call to order.

HB 27- STUDENT COUNT ESTI MATES

8:02: 49 AM

CHAI R GATTI S announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO. 27 "An Act relating to student counts, unreserved
school operating fund bal ances, restrictions on school district
noney, and estimates for public school funding; and providing
for an effective date.”

8:03: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ERIC FEIGE, Alaska State Legislature, said that

the genesis of the proposed bill was based on both his persona
experience and reported observations of school superintendents
in his district. He explained that the bill addresses schoo

budgeti ng using student counts taken during the year for which
the funding is applied, even though the planning for this
funding began 10-11 nonths prior to the actual count. He
pointed out that this fornmat requires that school adninistrators
plan for a variety of possibilities.

8:05:13 AM

M CHAEL PASCHALL, Staff, Representative Eric Feige, Al aska State
Legislature, said that funding is often cited as a mmjor issue
for education, and indicated that the bill provides better neans
for school districts to budget noney which they receive. He
noted that the commttee has heard from the Departnent of
Education and Early Developnent (EED) with a presentation on

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2013



average daily nenbership (ADM and the fornula calculation for
t he base student allocation (BSA).

8: 06: 08 AM

MR. PASCHALL, referred to the "Public School Funding Program
Overview' handout [included in nenbers' packets], and directed
attention to page 8, to point out that the current process
utilizes an estimated foundation nunber. He explained that HB
27 would change this nethod from estimations to actual nunbers.
ldentifying slide 2, "Application of ADM to BSA " of the
Power Point entitled "HB 27 Application of Average Daily
Menbership to Base Student Allocation,” he explained that the
school district budgeting process estimated student enroll nment
in January, conducted a student count in Cctober, and received a
count confirmation the follow ng January. He noted that the
school district received funding from July through March based
on the estimated funding, and then received funding from Apri

t hrough June based on any adjustnent to the confirned student
count . He established that the proposed bill would switch the
budget period and the confirmation period, so that the fiscal
year expenditures would begin with a calculated hard nunber

instead of an estimte. He referred to the hold harm ess
provision included in the proposed bill, which would allow for
suppl enmental funding to the school district in April through

June for any large increase in enrollnent which resulted in
additional costs earlier in the school year.

8:09: 13 AM

VR. PASCHALL noved on to slide 3, "Variations in ADM
Projections,” and offered exanples of student counts that were
too high and too Ilow, and highlighted the wvariation in
percentages from student count fluctuations for small school
districts and | arge school districts.

8:10: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. W LSON asked for clarification

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2013



MR. PASCHALL explained that, as funding was based on an
estimate, the paynent distributions could be either too high or
too | ow depending on the actual nunbers. Al t hough the paynent
woul d be adjusted in the last quarter of the fiscal year, it
woul d not be known until al nmost m d-way through the fiscal year.

8:11:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked about any recourse if the estinate
was too high

MR. PASCHALL replied that funding wthin the existing fornula
provided 12 equal paynents based on the projection, so the
actual paynent in the final quarter was adjusted up or down
based on the paynents in the previous three quarters.

8:12: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for nore information about the
fundi ng exanples on slide 3.

MR. PASCHALL explained that these exanples were for district-
wi de nunbers, not individual schools.

8:13:18 AM

CHAIR GATTIS offered her belief that the inpact from the
estimtes was easier for l|arger school districts to absorb, and
woul d have a nuch greater effect on smaller school districts.

MR. PASCHALL opined that even the large districts would report
that a small percentage for student differential had a
significant financial inpact.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON reflected that a small school had a school
size multiplier, and it wuld be necessary to consider the
entire formula and its effect on the funding. He asked if the
previ ous school year hard nunber was any nore accurate than an
estimate which would include projected transfers and pre-schoo
addi ti ons.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 5- February 4, 2013



8:15:40 AM

MR. PASCHALL agreed that the school district would use the
actual nunbers to budget for the up-comng school vyear. He
pointed out that the adjustnent would be received in the
foll owi ng year over a twelve nonth period.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the additional
fundi ng woul d not be received until the follow ng year.

MR. PASCHALL explained that the noney would be received the
following vyear, although it would be based on that year's
current enrollnment. He noted that the "hold harm ess"™ provision
could be invoked if there was a drastic change to the student
nunbers.

8:17: 09 AM

MR. PASCHALL introduced slide 4, "Statewide Average Daily
Menbership Fiscal Year 1988-2011," and noted that the average
had been relatively flat for the past decade. He noved on to
slide 5, "Statewide ADM FY 2002-2011," and pointed out that
there had been a statewide 2.7 percent decrease in student
popul ati on. Indicating slide 6, "The Biggest Losses," he
reported that the portrayed districts had the | argest enroll nent
dr ops. He noted that slide 7, "The Biggest Gains," reflected
the nodest gains for some districts, with the exception of a
continual gain by the Mtanuska- Susitna Borough School District.

8:19: 04 AM

MR. PASCHALL expl ained that budgeting with actual nunbers stil

required adjustnent for unanticipated changes and that the
reserve funds were used to pay for these adjustnents. He
reported that historically school districts had been allowed to
retain 10 percent of their operating fund in a reserve account.
In 2011, the Governnent Financial Oficers Association issued a
new best practice, which suggested a reserve account bal ance
equal to two nonths of operating expenditure, about 16.6
per cent . He stated that proposed HB 27 recommended an increase
of the reserve account balance to 15 percent, in order to allow

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2013



the school board nore autonony for capi tal pur chases,
significant repairs, or changes in operating environnment.

8:20:54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for the rationale to any limt for
the reserve account bal ance.

MR. PASCHALL speculated that, as the legislature would prefer
not to fund a school district with noney that was not being
spent, there was a |imt placed on the reserve account.

8:21:58 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to the proposed bill, page 9,
line 9, and read:

A district many not accumulate in a fiscal year an
unreserved portion of its year-end fund balance in its
school operating fund... greater than 15 percent of
its expenditures for that fiscal year.

He observed that this referred to an unreserved portion, and
asked if there was also a reserved, or any other, portion for
accunul at ed funds.

MR. PASCHALL deferred to the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (EED) for a nore detailed response about reserve
accounts.

8:23:12 AM

MR. PASCHALL directed attention to slide 9, "Returned Funds,"
and explained that these two nunicipalities, Fairbanks North
Star Borough and Mat anuska- Susitna Borough School District, had
chosen to allocate funding to the schools and, at year's end, to

recoup any unspent funds. He explained that this nobney was
removed from the reserve fund and re-allocated into capita
accounts. He pointed out that the school operating expenses,

and the reserve fund, were funded by both the nunicipality and
the State of Al aska. He acknow edged that it was questionable

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2013



whet her the noney reclaimed by the municipality was, in fact,
its noney or the state's noney.

8:24: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX, assessing that nost entities spent all of
the allocated funding, asked if this was not the sane for these
school districts.

MR. PASCHALL offered his belief that a school district began
operation wusing financial information which assuned certain
funding, but this did not beconme actual financial information
until January, which could then inpact funding.

8:25:30 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if the school district was
allowed to retain 10 percent.

MR. PASCHALL directed attention to slide 9, which illustrated
that the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough took $1.3 mllion from the
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District at year's end, |eaving
a reserve bal ance of 0.6 percent.

8:26:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND reflected that the Anchorage School
District was required to maintain a joint fund bal ance of 8.25
percent with the Mnicipality of Anchorage which preserved a
joint bond rating.

MR. PASCHALL replied that not all the boroughs wthdrew the
school district reserve funds. He specified that his office had
not received any objections from any school districts pertaining
to the provisions in the proposed bill. He allowed that, as
this was a significant issue for both the Fairbanks North Star
Borough and the WMatanuska-Susitna Borough, the aforenentioned
provi sion was added to the proposed bill.

8:27:43 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2013



REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked to clarify how a statute could
allow a school district to retain 10 percent of operating
expenses in a reserve account, yet the borough was able to
renove that funding.

MR. PASCHALL opined that a school district was allowed, but not
required, to keep the noney. He suggested that a |[egal
interpretati on was necessary.

8:28: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked why the school districts did not
spend this reserve nbney on necessary itens, as opposed to
returning the noney to the borough.

MR. PASCHALL deferred to the Matanuska-Susitna Borough School
District.

8:29:48 AM

LUKE FULP, Chief Business Oficial, Business & Operations,
Mat anuska- Susi t na Borough School District, explained that it was
not sound fiscal policy to spend in order to alleviate any year-
end funding reserves. He pointed out that having only $268
thousand to return to the Borough from an original operating
budget of $220 nmillion reflected very strategic financia
pl anning. He stated that the fund bal ance provision in proposed
HB 27 would "definitely help us in allowing us to hold a reserve
that really is comensurate with the size of budget we're trying
to operate.” He communicated that although it would not be two
nmont hs of operating expenses, it would allow a snooth annual
expenditure transition for funding shortfalls.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if proposed HB 27 would prohibit the
bor oughs fromtaking the excess funds.

MR. PASCHALL expressed his agreenent.

8:31: 39 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -9- February 4, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if +there was concern that the
borough would not fund to the school district an anount
equi valent to the reserve fund.

MR FULP replied that this would be a transparent public
process, as the borough could analyze the school district
resources, and determne the appropriation for the upcom ng
fiscal year. He stated that this approach was supported by the
school district as the public would then know exactly how much
education funding was given by the nunicipality. Referring to
an earlier question regarding the legality for the renoval of
reserve funds by the borough, he noted that any remaining
reserve funds above the m ninum required could be renoved by the
bor ough.

8:34:16 AM

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked if there was anticipation for nore
nmoney fromthe municipality if this provision was passed.

MR. FULP replied that he could not predict the anount of noney,
but the proposed provision would allow for a nobre transparent
public process with the determnation by the municipality of
school fundi ng appropriations.

8:35: 06 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked to clarify that if a borough
al l ocated nore funding than was required at the beginning of the
year, it could appropriate the excess funding at the end of the
year.

MR. FULP expressed his agreenent.
REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked if the proposed 5 percent
i ncrease would make a difference, or should the proposed bill be

anended to only allow the appropriation of any reserve above 15
percent .

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2013



MR. FULP opined that the intent of the proposed bill was to
elimnate any possibility for the borough to place additional
restrictions on fund bal ances.

MR. PASCHALL added that Section 4 of the proposed bill stated
that a borough may not take back funds that were originally
appropriated for the school district.

8:37:05 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify whether there was a
greater risk for not enough funding during the current year if
t he borough was calculating the fund bal ance, as the increased
student count would allow for nore state funding in the
foll owi ng year. He asked if the borough could potentially not
appropri ate enough noney.

MR. FULP, in response to Representative Seaton, offered his
belief that this mechanism for school district budgeting stil
had many unknowns. He shared that the Matanuska- Susitna Borough
School District had been working with the borough on a |ong-term
fundi ng pl an. He noted that the Matanuska-Susitna Borough was
split on opinion for the borough to appropriate the excess
funding at the end of the budget period. He reported that House
Bill 273, enacted in 2008, had approved a nmnulti-year funding
plan with an increase in the foundation fornula, which allowed
the school district to know the state funding three years in
advance. He declared that this alleviated a great deal of
financial uncertainty each year. However, the current year to
year funding nethodology for school districts required that the
districts maintain the fund bal ances. He decl ared support for
proposed HB 27, as it allowed the school district to maintain
its fund bal ance which hel ped snooth over unforeseen operating
cost shortfalls from year to year. He pointed out that, as the
Mat anuska- Susitna Borough School District student count was
increasing, with prior year student count funding the district
would need to nmamintain the fund balance in order to pay for
expense increases until the funding was brought up to date.

8:41: 53 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2013



MR. PASCHALL presented a sectional analysis for proposed HB 27.
He noted that Sections 1-3 were only necessary conformng
| anguage pertaining to previously nmade capital expenditures. He
said that Section 4 prohibited the nunicipality from [taking]
nmoney from the schools, and created transparency in the
budgeti ng process, so that the conmunity at |arge would better
understand how much noney had been budget ed. He decl ared that
Section 5 was additional conform ng |anguage. He expl ained that
Section 6 contained the hold harm ess provision to provide a
school district with additional funding if there was any sharp
increase in enrollnment. He indicated that the fiscal note
attached to the proposed bill had been prepared by Departnent of
Education and Early Devel opnment (EED), although it was difficult
to predict student counts.

8:44:34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER directed attention to page 8, lines 21-
31, and he asked to clarify the conditions in which a district
woul d not qualify for supplenental funding.

MR. PASCHALL explained that this section allowed a school
district having a significant enrollnment increase, which did not
qualify for supplenental funding based on the fornula, the
opportunity to request additional supplenental funding from the
| egislature to handle the unforeseen financial hardships that
could occur. He offered an exanple for an increase in intensive
needs students, as the cost of education for these students was
13 tinmes greater.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked for further explanation.

MR. PASCHALL offered as an exanple that the reserve fund
bal ances of school districts ranged from alnost nothing to the
maxi mum al |l owed, and therefore sone school districts would not
have the noney to neet the necessary expenses.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER confirmed his understandi ng.

8:48: 25 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked to clarify what would happen in the
subsequent year, if additional funds were made avail able during
the current year under the hold harm ess cl ause.

MR. PASCHALL explained that the fiscal note covered the
suppl emrental funding to the school district.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX asked for nore clarification regarding
subsequent fundi ng.

MR. PASCHALL replied that additional expenditures could result
fromincreases in student popul ation.

MR. FULP explained that the aforenentioned provision would
i mpact growi ng school districts. He noted that for any schoo
system there was scalability and it was occasionally necessary
to have additional revenue to supplenent actual needs for
drastic changes.

8:50:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, directing attention to page 8, line 28 of
the proposed bill, noted that the |anguage was "for an increase
in enrollment” and asked if this would go into effect if there
were nore special needs students, but no increase in enrollnent.
He asked if there could be application for supplenmental funding
if a school district was unable to fulfill its needs.

MR. PASCHALL expressed his agreenment with the assessnment, and
explained that this section was an effort to cover the many
contingencies that may arise and allow the |legislature the
ability to address unforeseeabl e events.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that every small schoo
district would qualify for increased funding if there was a
student count i ncrease.

MR. PASCHALL concurr ed.

8:54: 53 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER returned attention to page 8, line 30,
and asked if the |anguage "may request” should be replaced with
"shall request."

MR. PASCHALL indicated that EED had been consulted during the

drafting of the proposed bill. He offered his belief that this
was an analysis by EED to determne an actual need, before
including it in the budget. He stated that, otherw se, the

| egislature would be dictating to the governor what could be
included in the supplenental budget, and he questioned its
legality.

8:57: 00 AM

MR. PASCHALL returned attention to Section 7 of the sectiona

anal ysis, and stated that this increased the reserve fund from
10 to 15 percent. He reflected that this could also be
increased, if requested. He noved on to Section 8 which would
apply the January student count to the followi ng year rather
than the existing year, as currently applied. He reported that
Section 9 noved | anguage from one portion of statute to another.

He nentioned that Section 10 renoved the student count
estimates, and that Section 11 provided for an effective date.

8:58: 29 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER, referring to the page 9, line 18 of the
proposed bill, asked if the state still operated a statew de
centralized correspondence study program

MR. PASCHALL replied that he did not know if the program was
still in place.

8:59: 14 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 9, line 12, of the
proposed bill, and asked for the reason to continue use of the

Cct ober student count.

MR. PASCHALL explained that the only existing count was the
Oct ober count, which allowed EED to certify the nunber by

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2013



January for its wuse in the spring budgeting by the

district.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that the OCctober

woul d be applied to the upcom ng budget year.

school

count

MR. PASCHALL agreed that the student count would apply to the

upcom ng year, so that the student count could be fixed

budget and not require any adj ustnent.

9:02:17 AM

in the

PETE LEW S, Superintendent, Fairbanks North Star Borough Schoo

District, read froma prepared statenent:

This piece of |egislation addresses nultiple issues as

you've heard in the previous testinony and in
presentation. It addresses student counts for funding
purposes and this wll allow school districts to be

able to plan ahead know ng the approximate funding
levels in the event of enrollnment changes. That is a

positive for us. HB 27 also increases the limt

of

t he amobunt of unreserved school operating fund bal ance
from 10 to 15 percent. Since the Fairbanks North Star
Borough has a nore restrictive |ocal or di nance
regarding fund balance, this change would not inpact

our district. And lastly the bill restricts
assenbly's ability to re-appropriate or require
return of funds from the school district unless

t he
t he
t he

district is over the unrestricted fund balance limt.
Wth the proposed |egislation, operating dollars would
remain with the school district. Currently, a |apse
ordi nance exists in our Borough. The ordi nance has
required that operating fund dollars be noved to a

borough school facilities maintenance fund, and

to

date, that's over $4 million. The annual |apse anount
has been capped at $800,000 and the |apse calculation

is really two pronged here in Fairbanks. The first

is

a calculation that | ooks at the operating revenue over
expenditures regardless of the source of tinmng or
source of that revenue. The second part |ooks at fund
bal ance. Regardless of this legislation, our fund
balance is <capped at 7 percent of the |ocal

contribution amount, which in our case is just over $3
mllion. So, we are nowhere close to the governnent
financial officers association recommended anmount of

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 15- February 4, 2013



fund bal ance. Qur current fund balance is just under
$100, 000 and the previous year it was at zero. HB 27
woul d keep operating dollars wth classroons and
students where they belong. It makes the process
transparent and clear for everyone involved. As you
know, costs are high and many school districts are
struggling to make ends neet. HB 27 is a nove in the
right direction, and we ask for your support.

9:04: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked whether this proposed bill would
af fect the borough funding to the school district.

MR LEWS replied that his school district was funded to
approximately 75 percent of capacity for local contribution. He
explained that the borough could choose to fund a facilities
mai nt enance fund up front, and this would allow the school
district to "plan better in a better way."

9: 06: 06 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, directing attention to page 9, line 8 of
the proposed bill, asked if |ocal ordinances could supersede the
state regulations for the nmaximum balance in the schoo

operating fund.

MR. LEW S expressed his agreenent.
9: 07: 24 AM

LARRY DEVILBISS, WMyor, Matanuska-Susitna Borough, stated that
he had served on the school board as well as the city assenbly.
He offered his belief that it was "bad policy to take away the
power of the body that's responsible for raising the noney; any
power that controls how that noney is spent, is bad policy.” He
expl ained that school board nenbers were elected wth the
responsibility "to spend the noney to the maxi mum benefit of the
education,” but the assenbly nenbers were "elected to conme up
with raising that noney, it's why you're given the taxing
authority.” He opined that those people elected for taxing and
raising the noney should have the maxi mum control over the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2013



noney. He pointed out that in his district the fund bal ance was
negoti ated, and he opined that there had been success in neeting

the needs of the school district. He expressed his
understanding of the school district need for funds to
transition between budget cycles. He said that a forward

funding formula was being worked on to enable the school
district "to do business in a responsible way across one fisca
year to the next, and that's where the fund balance is always
hel pful to them"™ He noted that the current agreenent with the
school district was for a 50-50 split, but that it was
negoti abl e.

9:10: 27 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked whether the Matanuska- Susitna
Borough had a restrictive ordinance simlar to Fairbanks,
Al aska.

MAYOR DEVILBISS replied that he did not know who set the cap
but he did recognize the cap as a conponent of the borough code.

9:11: 36 AM

ELI ZABETH NUDELMAN, Director, School Finance and Facilities
Section, Departnment of Education and Early Devel opnment (EED),
said that she was avail abl e to answer questi ons.

9:11:49 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON, directing attention to page 5, line 8
of the proposed bill, asked if it was necessary to include
"counci | menbers" as sone areas did not have an "assenbly."

M5. NUDELMAN replied that she did not know, as that was specific
| anguage out si de EED.

9:12: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER, referring to page 8, lines 21-31 of the

proposed bill, asked if there were any situation where an
increase to the student population of a district would not

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2013



exceed 3 percent or 200 students, yet could still cause a
shortfall, necessitating a request for supplenental funding.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that EED had not previously worked wth
simlar |anguage, but she offered her belief that the
ci rcunst ance coul d be found.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER surmised that an increase to special
needs students, as discussed earlier, would automatically
increase federal funding to the school district through the
foundati on fornul a.

M5. NUDELMAN opined that the |anguage of the proposed bill was
not clear as to how intensive needs students would be addressed,
unl ess they coincided with an increase of enroll nment.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to page 8, line 30, and asked if
this |language gave EED the option to request supplenental
funding, or should the |anguage reflect an obligation to request
suppl emental funding in this situation

M5. NUDELMAN explained that EED worked wth the governor's
budget annually, and she expressed that she was unsure for the
best avenue to seek supplenental funding. She said that it may
not be in the departnent's purview to seek supplenental funding
when the | anguage of the proposed bill stated "may"; however, if
the proposed bill |anguage said "shall", and this was found to
be legally acceptable, then EED woul d seek suppl enental funding.
She suggested that the | anguage needed clarity.

9:16:32 AM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON nused that if EED was required to
distribute the supplenental funding, then there would be "a
bunch of people applying because they know they'Il get it." She
opined that, in this case, the use of "may" would be correct, as
it would allow EED the option for awardi ng suppl enental funding.

9:18: 07 AM

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that the fiscal note indicated
that 11 districts, or 20 percent of all the state districts,
would qualify annually under the hold harnl ess provision. He
asked how adm ni stration of this program woul d work.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in response to M. Nudelman, clarified
that page 8, line 24 stated that "the departnment shall provide
suppl emrental funding”" and yet the fiscal note did not reflect
any cost for this procedure.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that the fiscal note had been cal cul ated by
conparing the prelimnary 2013 adjusted average daily nenbership
(ADM) at the school size point to the 2012 actual ADM  She said
that it was not exactly clear where the supplenental funding
woul d come from but she suggested it would be a conmponent of
the funding fornmula, and the appropriation would be allocated as
t here were funds.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested that EED provide a sequential,
graphic explanation for how this could be inplenmented, as EED
was required to provide the supplenental funding. He requested
that information be provided for the district sizes of the 11
school districts indicated in the fiscal note. He then
i ndicated page 9, line 8 of the proposed bill and asked if there
were al so reserved portions of the school operating fund, and if
there was any interaction between reserved and unreserved funds.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that the law allowed for a fund bal ance of
reserved and unreserved conponents. She stated that the
reserved conponents were identified in regulation, and were for
encunbrances, inventories, pre-paid expenses, self-insurance,
and the piece of inpact aide which districts wused in the
followi ng year. She said that these five categories were
separated out of the unreserved funds.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that, as the unreserved
portion was being increased from 10 to 15 percent, it seened as
t hough the school district had the ability to nove the funds
between these categories to create a fund balance in excess of
this 10 or 15 percent.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -19- February 4, 2013



M5. NUDELMAN agreed that the cap on the fund bal ance was only
for the unreserved conponent, so that any funds in the reserved
conponent were not susceptible to the cap.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to have EED provide a sanpling of
reserved and unreserved balances from large, nmedium and snall
school districts.

9:25: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SADDLER asked if there was currently a
centralized correspondence program

V. NUDELMAN replied that there was not a centralized
correspondence program t hr oughout t he state, but a
correspondence program was now adm nistered by the i ndividual
school districts.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if the reference on page 9, line 18
was still valid.

M5. NUDELMAN replied that the reference should be reviewed for
rel evance.

9:27:12 AM

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON requested that EED recommend new
| anguage regardi ng the correspondence prograns.

M5. NUDELMAN suggested that only the words on page 9, line 18
shoul d be reconsi der ed.

9:28:16 AM

MR. PASCHALL confirnmed that the proposed bill nust interact with
all existing statutes and that it would be necessary for
Legislative Legal and Research Services to wite anmendnments to
the statute pertaining to all portions of the centralized
correspondence program that were no |longer in place. He noted
that this could require not only an anmendnment, but a bill title
change, as well.

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 20- February 4, 2013



9:29:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER suggested that the revisor of statutes
may need to consider this for future actions.

9:29: 50 AM
CHAI R GATTI S opened public testinony.
9: 30: 30 AM

PEGGY COWMAN, Superi nt endent , North Slope Borough Schoo
District, said that the school board did not have a position on
proposed HB 27. She explained that this bill "does not fix the
budget gap,"” noting that her district had cut 30 positions over
that |ast few years due to flat funding and increased
expendi t ures. She spoke in support of the provisions proposed
on page 4, line 28, Section 4, which allowed school districts to
mai ntain a fund bal ance. She pointed out that the hold harm ess
provi sions were inportant, and she provided an exanple of the
i ncreased enrollnment from incomng children attending the pre-
school program which then required an additional teacher for the
current year.

9: 34: 30 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, referring to her exanple for increased
enrol I ment, asked if the student estinate based on the previous
year count was better for funding than an Cctober count for the
current year. He asked if there was a bal ance between incom ng
and graduating students.

M5. COMN expl ained that, since 1999, her district only had an
increased enrollnment for three years. She noted that, as the
upcom ng year was projected for an increase in students, the
district would not receive as nuch funding as a count during the

current year. She opined that the school district would not
reach the 3 percent threshold to qualify for supplenental
f undi ng. She expressed her appreciation for the "attenpt at

pl anning, <certainly the hold harm ess clauses are inportant

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -21- February 4, 2013



because of those very reasons, because if we do have nore
students and have to spend nore noney on them then the hold
harm ess clauses ... are very significant for districts such as
ours and others across the state.”

9:37:15 AM

DUNCAN WARE, Superintendent, Delta/Geely School District, said
that efficient planning was inportant, especially in times of
austere budgets. He declared his support for proposed HB 27, as
it was inportant for school districts to do adequate planning
and be able to plan their funding. He reported that, although
his school district had remained static, the hold harnless
provi sions were greatly advantageous. He reported that the
percentage i ncrease for the reserve funds was beneficial.

9:39: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON asked to clarify that the school
district's federal funding was in a reserved account, as opposed
to an unreserved account.

MR. WARE replied that the inpact aide, about $38,000, and the
suppl enental funding from the Departnent of Defense, about
$53, 000, had been designated by the school board to a reserve
fund for curricula materials to support the classroomteachers.

9:40:17 AM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (AASB), stated support by AASB for proposed HB 27. He
said that the issues were conplicated and there were argunents
for both sides. He expressed his belief that dollars which were
appropriated for education should be protected and be used for
educat i on. He agreed that once funds from nunicipalities were
co-mngled with state and federal funds, it becane unclear which
funding remained. He expressed support for clarifying the
percentage of funding to be protected. He pointed out that
pl anni ng, especially during times of scarce resources, was
extrenely inportant. He noted that enrollnment, adjusted average
daily nenbership (ADM, and base student allocation were all

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE -22- February 4, 2013



necessary elenents to dictate levels of funding. He stated that
proposed HB 27 woul d "be very hel pful™ for planning purposes.

9:42:17 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, directing attention to the hold harnm ess
provision of 200 students or 3 percent, asked whether this
shoul d be adjusted for school size factors.

MR. ROSE replied that the adjusted ADM was the nost inportant
nunber . He offered his belief that the diversity of the state
ensured that any decision would not work for everyone, and this
woul d be true for this provision, as well.

9:43: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked if there would be any unintended
consequences, including large anmobunts of additional funding
bei ng required.

MR. ROSE, in response to Representative Saddler, said that he
was never able to foresee the unintended consequences. He
opined that there was not going to be any overage for funding
Referring to the earlier discussions for "shall" versus "my"
he shared that he preferred "shall" for an inportant issue, and
"may" when the need for latitude is a conmponent.

9:45: 01 AM

BILL MCLEQD, Superintendent, Dillingham Cty School District,
said that proposed HB 27 was a good bill for education. He
shared that budget planning was difficult in Al aska, as it
required use of the OCctober enrollnment count, and an early

projection of revenue and expenses. He declared that the
enrol | ment count was very inportant, as it was the driver for
much of the funding. Using the known enrollnment count from

Cctober of the current year for the next year's budget would be
very helpful to his school district as the current enroll nment
was higher than the projected enrollnent. He reported that
rural Alaska had a shifting population base and that using the
known enrollnment for the projected funding would stabilize the

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 23- February 4, 2013



pl anni ng process. He suggested that the 3 percent threshold for
the hold harmess provision mght need to be adjusted for
smaller, rural school districts to allow for declines or

i ncreases. He discussed that uses for the reserved fund was
mandat ed, but the unreserved fund was less restrictive, and he
asked for caution in nmaking changes to the reserved funds. He

pointed to the inportance for the inclusion of intensive needs
students in the regular enrollnment count as the nultiplier was
especially inportant to a small school district. He stated the
need for assurance for this funding, and that |ocal governance
coul d best decide the need and the allocation for expenditure.

9:51: 06 AM
CHAI R GATTI S cl osed public testinony.
9:51: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DRUMMOND expressed interest in receiving coments
specifically from the Anchorage School District and the
Anchor age Assenbly.

9:51: 54 AM
CHAI R GATTI S announced that HB 27 woul d be held over.
9:52:16 AM
ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Education Standing Comm ttee neeting was adjourned at 9:52 a.m

HOUSE EDC COW TTEE - 24- February 4, 2013



